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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

The Governors (Trustees/Directors) have pleasure in presenting their annual report together with the
financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable company for the year ended 3l August 2019.
The annual report serves the purposes ofboth a trustees' report, and a directors' report under company
law.

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged I I to 18 serving in a catchment area in the Kinson/East
Howe districts of Bournemouth. It has a pupil capacity of 900 students in years 7 -ll and 1 50 for years
72 and 13. On the census day of 3 October 2019,there were 864 students on roll in years 7-11 and 115
on roll in years 12 and 13.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution
The Bourne Academy is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity with no share capital.
It was incorporated on 5 February 2010. The charitable company's memorandum and articles of
association (dated 1 February 2010) and the funding agreement (dated 24 February 2010) are the
primary governing documents of The Bourne Academy. The Governors of The Bourne Academy are
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law and the trustees for the
purposes of charity legislation.

Details of the Governors who served during the year are on page 3

Members' Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding f 10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustee Indemnities
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, each Governor or other officer of the Academy shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any liability incured by them in that capacity in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in
which they are acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to them by
the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation
to the affairs of the Trust.

Members
Canford School is the Principal Sponsor of The Bourne Academy, and as such is a member of The
Bourne Academy. Other members include the Chair of the Board of Governors and up to three persons
appointed by the Principal Sponsor.

Governors
The Bourne Academy currently has sixteen Governors consisting of: ten Sponsor Governors, one
Local Authority Governor, one Staff Governor, one Parent Govemor, one Community Representative
Governor, one Education Partner Governor and the Principal, who is an ex-officio Governor.

Governors are responsible for the statutory and constitutional affairs of the charitable company and the
management of the Academy.

Bournemouth and Poole College is The Bourne Academy's Education Partner.



3

THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (contìnaed)

Recruitment and Appointment of Governors
The appointment of Governors is carried out in line with the requirements of the Articles of
Association and is as follows;
- Sponsor Governors are appointed by the Principal Sponsor,
- Local Authority Governor is appointed by the Local Authority,
- Parent Governor is appointed via secret ballot of the parents of students at the Academy,
- Staff Governor is appointed via secret ballot of the staff of the Academy,
- Community Representative Governor is appointed by Principal Sponsor and approved by

resolution of the Governors,
- Education Partner Governor is appointed by the Education Partner

Newly appointed Governors are provided with the Academy's oGovernor induction pack' which
includes details of policies, procedures and training appropriate for the role. The Academy's Induction
Policy is applied.

The term of office for any Governor shall be four years from the date of their appointment, save that
this time limit shall not apply to the Principal. Subject to remaining eligible time to be a particular type
of Governor, any Governor may be re-appointed or re-elected.

The Governors who served during the year to the date of this report are as follows;

Mark Avoth (P)
Joanna Binstead (PG)
Henry Bishop (S)
Tim Brown (S)
Daniel Butt (S)
Pauline Calvert (S)
Darren Cheeseman (C)
Sue Churchill (C)
Caroline Foster (LA)
Oliver Hunter (S)
Nicola Jinks (S)
Richard Knott (S) *
Heidi Leavesley (S)
Lawrence Lewis (PG)
David Mastrocola (SG)
David Neill (S) ^
Jacqueline Page (EP)
Adrian Smith (S)
Ben Vessey (S)
Lisa Welch (PG)

(resigned I I December 2018)
(appointed 11 December 2018)

(resigned 7 October 2019)
(appointed I October 2019)
(resigned 2 July 2019)

(appointed 1 I December 2018, resigned 1 July 2019)

(appointed I October 2019)

(appointed 14 October 2019)

LA
P

EP

*

S

PG
SG
C

Chair of Board of Governors
Sponsor Governor
Parent Governor
Staff Governor
Community Representative Governor

Vice Chair of Board of Governors
Local Authority Governor
Principal
Educational Partner Governor
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' RE,PORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

STRUCTURE, GOVER¡IANCE AND MANAGEMENT (co ntinued)

Organisational Structure
During the year, The Bourne Academy has expanded the management structure, which was
established in the implementation phase of the Academy. The new structure consists of three levels;
the Governors, the Executive group and the Leadership Team.

The Executive group that served during the year and to the date of this report were as follows;
Mark Avoth - Principal and Accounting Officer
Carol Harrison - Vice Principal (retired 3l August 2019)
Ashley St John - Vice Principal
Caroline Gobell - Business Director; Marketing and Income Generation
Catherine Turner - Business Director; Finance, Facilities & IT (from I January 2019)

The full Governing Body consists of sixteen Governors as detailed on page I and 3. Governors are
responsible for setting general policy, adopting the Academy's development plan and associated
financial plans and approving the annual budget. They monitor the Academy by the use of budgets and
making major decisions about the direction of the Academy, including capital expenditure and senior
staff appointments.

The Governing Body has established a Finance and Pay Committee, whose membership includes a
small number of Governors and the Principal, with participation from the Business Director; Finance,
Facilities and IT, to provide scrutiny and ensure probity of all financial matters relevant to the
Academy.

The Governing Body has established other committees with responsibility for Risk Management and
Appeals. These committees sit as and when required throughout the academic year. A formal link
governance structure has been developed over the previous year and officially adopted from I
September 2018. Governors are linked to different aspects of the Academy's life and will monitor
their areas, reporting back to the Governing Body. Further committees will be established as required
to assist the link governors with their duties.

During the year the full Governing Body held four meetings and the Finance and Pay Committee (a
sub-committee of the full Governing Body) held three meetings.

The day-to-day management of the Academy is carried out by the leadership team, which is headed by
the Executive group, under the Principal's guidance. They implement the policies laid down by the
Governors and report back to them. The Academy's leadership team was expanded in June 2018 and
now includes two Assistant Principals as well as the Executive group. From I September 2019 athird
Assistant Principal joined the leadership team as a result of a change of leadership structure after the
retirement of Carol Harrison, Vice Principal.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The Governors have delegated the power of setting pay and remuneration of all key management
personnel, except for the Principal, to the Principal and the Finance and Pay Committee. The pay and
remuneration of the Principal is set by the Governors.
Pay and remuneration is set in accordance with the Academy's pay policy (approved by the Governors
annually), which sets out the parameters for successful performance over the year and the pay
progression system. The Finance and Pay Committee review the performance management
information and interogate the decision making process behind pay awards before approval is given.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

STRUCTURE, GOVERNAI\CE AI\D MANAGEMENT (contínued)

Trade union facility time
Under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017,
the Academy publishes the following information;

Relevant Union Officials
Number of employees who were relevant union officials
during the period

I

Full-time equivalent employee number I

of time on time

of biil on time
Total cost of faciliry time f65
Total pay bill f.4,7s3,s98
%o of total pay bill spend on facility time 0.00001%

Paid trade union activities

Percentage of Time Number of employees
0% 1

1% - 50% 0
51-99% 0

Time spent on trade union activities as a percentage of total
paid facility time hours

100%

This employee was within the Academy's IT function.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
Canford School, an independent school, is the Principal Sponsor of The Bourne Academy and as such
is recognised as a connected party.

Canford School's vision for the Academy was that it would be at the heart of the community of East
Howe, offering local families an excellent education, new opportunities and facilities available to all.
Raising pupils' expectations, building their self-confidence and teaching them appropriate skills that
allow them to build a successful career and contribute to society were, and remain, central to The
Bourne Academy's aims. Canford School promotes the vision for the Academy by forging strong links
to the Academy, through the provision of Governors, staff expertise, access to facilities and joint
student learning experiences. Canford School provides the opportunity for Year 1 1 Academy
students to apply for a scholarship to the prestigious school's 6th Form. Students have to sit several
exams, attend two interviews and achieve excellent GCSE results.

The Academy has also founded a charitable organisation, The Bourne Foundation. The objectives of
The Bourne Foundation are to support The Bourne Academy in creating an aspirational community of
learning and achievement that will make a positive contribution to its students and the wider
community. It aims to fulfil these objectives by fundraising and financially supporting projects within
the Academy as its fundraising activities allow. The Bourne Foundation is considered to be a
connected charity.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects, Aims and Public Benefit
The principal objective and activity of the charitable company is to advance, for the public benefit,
education in the United Kingdom, in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing)
by establishing, maintaining, carrying on and developing a school offering a broad curriculum with a
strong emphasis on, but in no way limited to, Engineering & Design and English and in particular, but
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, to counter the impact of deprivation and disadvantage

on education, and to promote educational work within the communify served by The Bourne Academy.
In setting out our objectives and planning our activities the Governors have given careful consideration
to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Academy's main strategy is encompassed in its mission statement, which is "Everyone is a
learner and everyone is a teacher".

The Academy aspires to become an inspiring learning centre for everyone who engages with us, with
all activities and experiences in the Academy focused on learning, personal growth and supporting all
the learners to lead successful, fulfilling lives. The Bourne Academy should be accessible and

enjoyable for everyone who wishes to engage in learning and personal growth. Together, the Academy
will succeed in developing this vision through our 6 priorities of:

r Raising aspirations of students, their parents/carers and the community, reducing absence, and

ensuring that all leaving students are in employment, education or training.
o Raising standards including attainment for all years and standards in English and Mathematics.
o Developing strong partnerships with parents/carers, businesses and the local and wider

community.
o Ensuring inclusive learning, namely the highest standards of learning and teaching, and a

relevant and personalised curriculum for all students.
¡ Developing a culture of Rights & Responsibilities where outstanding behaviour allows all

learners to achieve success and all members of the Academy treating each other with respect.
o Ensuring that leadership skills and attributes are fostered and displayed throughout the

Academy by staff and students.

The Bourne Academy believes that all students should be empowered to achieve and aspire to the
highest possibilities; be treated with respect and treat others with respect, and enjoy the Academy. We
are therefore committed to providing a caring and safe environment through the House System for all of
our students so that they can learn in an atmosphere of mutual respect for each other's views and

approaches to life.

The Academy will develop literate, numerate global citizens who ASPIRE, i.e. they are:

Ambitious
Self-confident
Physically Aware
Independent Learners
Resilient
Bmotionally Literate
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

OBJECTMS AND ACTIVITIES @ontinued)

Our shared objectives are that every student:

o Has belief in and a positive vision for themselves, their future and their school.
o Is literate and able to communicate ideas clearly and confidently.
o Can think clearly and is able to question, make decisions and solve problems.
¡ Understands and can apply engineering and design principles to make life better for people.
o Is well prepared to participate in the community as a global citizen.

Equality
The Bourne Academy's Equality Policy brings together all previous policies, schemes and action plans
around equality including those that we had previously for Race, Gender and Disability. The Equality
Policy has been developed as part of the Academy's commitment to our duties under the Equality Act
2010 to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations in
connection with disability, race, ethnicity, gender, religion, beliet pregnancy, maternity, marriage, civil
partnership, sexual identity and age. We are further committed to the development and promotion of
cohesive communities both within the Academy's physical boundaries and within our local, national
and global environments.

The Academy and the Governing Body embrace the aim of working together with others to improve the
educational and wellbeing outcomes for children and young people, which is pivotal to our central
belief that everyone is a learner and everyone is a teacher, and notes the rights set out in the UN
Convention on the Rights of the Child, the llN Convention on the Rights of People with Disabilities,
and the Human Rights Acts 1998.

The Academy seeks to embed equality of access, opportunity and outcome for all members of The
Bourne Academy community, within all aspects of Academy life. In working towards this, we are
guided by the following key concepts:

o Shared humanity. Identifring commonality and shared values, aspirations and needs underpins
our approach to equality. We value our fundamental similarities and universality.

o Valuing difference and diversity. We recognise and respect difference and look for ways of
celebrating and understanding them better.

r Personal and cultural identity. We will provide opportunities to explore and value the
complexity of our personal and cultural identities.

o Interdependence, interaction and influence. The Academy recognises that, as they evolve,
distinct cultures, beliefs and lifestyles will impact on and inform each other.

o Social cohesion. We foster positive attitudes, relationships and a shared sense of cohesion and
belonging within the Academy and our local community.

¡ Excellence. We will develop literate, numerate global citizens who ASPIRE, and recognise and
support high personal and collective achievement throughout our local, national and global
communities.

Fairness and social justice. We will develop our understanding of the inequalities and barriers
that already exist in society and explore ways to reduce and remove them and promote a more
equitable society.

O
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

OBJECTMS AND ACTMTIES (contínued)

We will ensure that we identif, opportunities for promoting our vision, the key concepts, guiding
principles, develop non-statutory policies, and our duties on equality legislation across all aspects of
Academy life.

The Academy will actively promote and disseminate its Policy and any revisions to the Policy will be
published as and when appropriate. We aim to continue to maintain positive and on-going engagement
with the wider Boume Academy community of staff, Governors, students, parents and partner agencies

and will do so through a wide range of forums.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance, including Key Performance Indicators
On27 February 2018 the Academy underwent a short inspection by Ofsted with the result that there

was no change to the Academy's current overall effectiveness grade of good. Ofsted found that:
o Staff work tirelessly to ensure that students and parents understand the importance of good

attendance. Attendance has historically been above average, but fell during 2016117 with
improvements being seen through this academic year.

o Since the previous inspection, the quality of teaching has improved in areas, but not universally
across the curriculum. Progress in English and Humanities has been above the national average.

o Students feel that the Academy is a safe place and that bullying is not an issue; if it occurs it is
dealt with effectively.

o Safeguarding is effective, with the safeguarding team being in the best position to offer the
support that students need.

r The school engages well with parents, carers and the local community and is held in high
regard.

The reports recommends the following next steps for the Academy;
o To ensure the quality of teaching is improved and achievement raised across the curriculum.
o To improve behaviour by reducing persistent absenteeism and exclusions.
¡ To improve leadership through Governors oversight of pupil premium spending and knowledge

of strategies having the most impact on students' achievement.

The Academy will undergo a full inspection the next time that Ofsted visit; this is expected within the
2019120 academic year. The Academy is developing its curriculum and teaching to ensure that the
requirements of the new framework will be met.

Results
The Academy sets out its key performance indicators (KPIs) in the development plan for the year and

monitors progress throughout the year, amending strategies as required, in order to achieve these KPIs.

At GCSE level the main KPIs for this year were to achieve a positive overall Progress 8 score,
individual positive Progress 8 scores for English, Maths and Science and 66Yo+ of students obtaining
grade 9-4 scores (including English and Maths).
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 3I AUGUST 2019

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

The Academy's results for this year did not quite match up to the results from last year, but were still
successful when taking into account that the cohort had a prior attainment further away from the
national average. Academy's Progress 8 figure for 2078/19 is +0.00 (2017118 +0.13), with negative
scores in English and Maths. 73o/o and 60Yo of students obtained grades 9-4 in English and Maths
respectively (2017118 74% and 68Yo respectively). Thirteen other subjects had 70Yo+ of their students

obtaining at least a grade 4. Five subjects, including the Academy's specialism of Engineering,
achieved positive Progress I figures s¡svs¡ *1.0.

The Academy will continue to work on strategies to improve results, with the focus continuing to be on

Maths and Science in the next year.

At A-level the main KPI was to obtain a 100Yo pass rate and a progress score of at least ALPs level 6.

Our Sixth Form results, from an attainment and Progress point of view, are lower than last year.

Thirteen subjects achieved a l00o/o pass rate. Provisional results indicate we have achieved an ALPs
level 6 or 7 this year (5 in2018, 7 in 2017 and 8 in 2016), with the lower results largely down to the
underperformance of English, which has historically been one of our best attaining subject areas.

The Academy has had a record number of students entering university from the 6th form (21 students).

The Academy also has its first student starting the application process to the University of Cambridge.

Disadvantaged Students
Disadvantaged Student funding (formerly Pupil Premium funding) is received in addition to our main
Government funding and is given to schools and academies to help naffow the attainment gap between
pupils from low income families and their peers. Students are eligible for this funding if they have been

registered for Free School Meals at any point in the last 6 years or they are Looked After (in care).

Approximately 39Yo of students currently at the Academy are eligible for Disadvantaged Student
funding.

During 2018119 the Academy continued to ensure that the disadvantaged students funding was used to
maximum effect. The GCSE results this year were not quite as robust as the prior year with 45% of
students obtaining a grade 4 of higher in English andlor Maths, with the Progress 8 score being -0.25.
Nationally, the Academy's disadvantaged students have out-performed similar schools. The internal
progress gap between disadvantaged students and their peers has narrowed this year, from -0.50 to -
0.41.

During 2018119 the Academy focused on relationship-based approaches, as research indicates that these

have the most impact. For that reason, focus was on the following:
1. One-to-one mentoring of under-achieving Year 10 and Year I 1 disadvantaged students by teaching

staff.
2. Creation and use ofa new Year 1 1 disadvantaged register - focused on student context and

personalised intervention strategies (based on staff feedback on individual students). Additionally,
all Year I I disadvantaged students completed a questionnaire on barriers to learning and what
extra help they need to achieve - this was circulated to staff as an aide to working with individual
students.

3. Disadvantaged students were prioritised for Maths, English and Science one-to-one/small group
tuition.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

GOVERNORS' REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

STRATEGIC REPORT (contínued)

The Academy will continue vvith these approaches, although the decision has been made to move
mentoring into Year 10. The rationale behind this is to reduce the need for late intervention in Year 11.

There is also an ongoing focus on quality-first teaching and the impact this has on disadvantaged
students.

6th Form
The Academy is very proud of its 6th Form as it continues to improve academically, and our students
continue to be successful in their choice of further education. The Academy provides a range of A-
Levels or Level 3 BTEC courses to its students, which will benefit them whether they choose to go on
to University or into the work place.

A distinctive addition to our 6th Form is that of the Bourne Ambassador Scheme. This is a pioneering
and effective project which pairs up each 6tr' former with a local business expert for two years of
mentoring through the A-Level course. The Ambassador advises students on how to present themselves;
they offer selÊconfidence tips and their experience and expertise to successfully negotiate a route into
Higher Education or employment. The Academy has recruited increased numbers into the scheme this
year and the programme has been so successful that it has been presented at the national UCAS
conference for careers advisors.

Careers advice is exceptionally strong at the Academy, this being evidenced by our Careers Advisor
securing a national award for careers advice and guidance. The Academy was also one of only 3

schools nationally to achieve all Gatsby Benchmarks, a key indicator of success in the Governments
career strategy document.

The Academy has continued to receive funding from the Southern Universities Network and the
National Collaborative Outreach Programme. This was to deliver a programme of activities and
residential trips to engage and increase the aspirations of highlighted students. In connection with this
project the Academy has worked with another local Academy to develop careers advice provided to
students within that school. The project commenced in January 2018 and completed in July 2019.

Pastoral Care and Attendance
Pastoral care continues to be provided to the students through the House and tutor system and the
assertive mentoring scheme implemented by the Academy. The emotional well-being and attitude to
learning of the students continues to remain a priority and the effectiveness of our Heads of House work
in this area can be seen through the sustained level in student attendance throughout the academic year.

The Academy's own Education Social Worker and Student Support Officer work alongside the Heads
of House, assisting them with this work and provide outreach work to primary partners to embed good
attendance before students join the Academy. Overall attendance at the Academy reduced this year at
93.34% (2018 - 94.60%), mainly due to an increased persistent absence rate to 16.2% The Academy
will continue to refine its already robust attendance systems and procedures in order to meet its
aspirational tar get of 9 6%o attendance.

Additional pastoral care and support is provided through after-school cuniculum enrichment sessions,
which has been effective in accelerating students' progress, preparing them for examinations and
promoting their sense of well-being. The Academy also employs an Emotional Health and Well Being
Coordinator who works with the students to support their mental health.
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STRATEGIC RBPORT (contìnued)

The Student Council for the year, led by the Head Boy and Head Girl and their Assistants, continued to
be a positive force within the Academy and the Academy welcomes the positive contributions to the
school community that this council, and its associated sub-committees, has made. They, along with the
Academy's student leaders, are playing a significant part in shaping the direction of the Academy and
allowing the students to develop their ability to ASPIRE.

The Academy continues to strengthen links with local primary schools through our Primary Partnership
scheme. This scheme provides a range of workshops and activities to primary school students and
allows them to interact with our older students while having an introduction to the larger spaces of
secondary schools in a positive manner. The scheme also develops our own students; improving their
leadership abilities, building their selÊconfidence and allowing them to develop a sense of pride in their
school which they can share with the wider community.

The Academy continues to raise funds to improve and upgrade the facilities offered to students. Income
is raised via grant applications and actively trying to increase income raised through community
lettings. This year Public Health Dorset granted f25,589 to the Academy, to assist in improving the
mental health and physical well-being of students. Using the 'additional extras' funding that was
received from the Department of Education in February, the Academy created a dual-purpose teaching
room, incorporating a new ICT suite.

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that the Academy
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason,
the Academy continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further
details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies (page 30). Cash flow and obtaining a balanced budget continues to remain a concern to the
Governors. The Academy did not receive its anticipated pupil number funding adjustment (resulting
from increased 6th form students) during the summer of 2019, which has led to the Academy achieving
a deficit for 2018/19. The Academy is working with the ESFA to ensure that financial savings are made
where possible to ensure that the Academy remains a going concern.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Throughout the year, the Academy continued to develop the accounting functions, paying particular
regard to the recommendations provided by the internal auditors. The finance manual, detailing the
procedures in place, continues to be reviewed and updated on an on-going basis to ensure compliance
with the Academies Financial Handbook and that the financial policies and controls used are

appropriate and consistently applied.

The Academy receives the majority of its funding from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA). The income received from the ESFA is split into three main areas; the General Annual Grant
(calculated from the number of pupils enrolled in the Academy), disadvantaged funding and grants for
other purposes. Other income is received from the Local Authority (Boumemouth Borough Council)
and through other activities carried out by the Academy. The Academy has seen a sustained level of
community lettings over the year, monies from which support the Academy's educational activities.

Total income for the year amounted to f,6,043,519 (2018 - f,5,726,480). The total amount received from
the ESFA during the year was f,5,520,287 (2018 - f.5,213,688) which makes up 91.3Yo (2018 - 91.0%)
of the year's total funding. The increase in income from the ESFA relates to General Annual Grant
which has increased due to the number of students now on roll at the Academy.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW @ontinued)

The component parts of the ESFA funding are as follows:
. f5,064,988 for the General Annual Grant (GAG).
o f295,376 in respect of Disadvantaged Student funding.
o f.22,706 in respect of Year 7 Catch Up funding.
o f.67,345 for capital purposes.
o f26,739 in respect of rates relief.
o 943,133 in respect ofthe teachers'pay grant.

The Academy also received funds totallingf.523,232 (2018 - f,512,792) from a number of other sources
as follows:

o î,128,865 from the local authority and other councils (f87,568 for special educational needs and
f.41,291 Looked After Children Disadvantaged Student funding).

. f70,051 from the Southern Universities Network to support a careers programme.
¡ f 130,000 from parents and pupils for contributions towards school trips & activities.
¡ f,83,036 raised through uniform and tuition sales, sale of staff services, sales of goods and hire

of facilities.
o f,17,767 from Teach l't and Schools Direct to support training for their trainees.
o f7,419 from the Duke of Edinburgh Diamond grant scheme to support the Academy's outdoor

education programme.
o f25,589 from Public Health Dorset to support students' mental health and physical wellbeing.
o f24,820 in respect of contributions from foreign students for visits to the Academy.
¡ f35,685 ofother sales, grants, donations and receipts.

Income, which is received with a stipulation of the terms on how it is to be expended, is included within
the restricted funds and the associated expenditure is taken to these funds. Where income is received
specifically for capital purposes then it is included within the restricted fixed assets fund. All other
restricted income is included within the restricted general funds.

The total expenditure for the Academy for the year amountedto f,6,427,170 (2018 - f6,250,476) and the
vast majority is associated with providing education to the students attending the Academy. This is done
through the provision of teaching staff, educational materials and resources and ensuring that the
infrastructure is in place to support this provision.

The largest item of expenditure for the Academy is the cost of its employees, who are made up of
teaching, educational support staff, management and administration staff. Staffing costs for the year,
including redundancies and supply cover costs, but excluding the apprenticeship levy (as per note 10),
came to f.4,818,287 (2018 - f.4,465,173) which is 74.9%o (2018- 71/%) of the total expenditure and
79.7% (2018 - 78.0%) of income received in the year.

f291,012 (2018- f294,511) has been spent during the year on the upkeep and maintenance of the school
premises. The small reduction is a result of improved prioritisation over the year. The remainder of the
expenditure, f,\,317,871 (2018 - f,l,490,792) includes f,142,000 in relation to financial adjustments in
connection with the Local Government Pension Scheme (2018 - 9365,000). The remainingf,l,175,87l
(2018 - f,l,125,792) was spent on areas such as training and development of staff, educational supplies
and resources, student welfare, examinations, IT and depreciation of assets. Costs have increased this
year due to costs associated with the funding received from the Southern Universities Network.
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FINANCIAL RE\IIEW (contìnued)

On its educational provision, the Academy incurred a deficit of f,66,561(2018 - f9,848). This result
was a worse position than budgeted at the start of the year (surplus of f10,268). The majority of the
deficit was in relation to the Academy not receiving anticipated pupil number adjustment funding in
relation to the increased number of 6th form students on roll compared to the number funded for. The
Governors continue to monitor the Academy's Medium-Term Financial Plan, which reviews the
forecasts up until 2021122. Overall, the Academy achieved a net deficit for the year, prior to actuarial
gains on the pension scheme, of Ê383,651 (2018 - f.523,996). This incorporates the deficit on
educational provision of f,66,567, capital funding received of f,67,345,Iess the depreciation on assets

of f242,435 and finance costs associated with the Local Government Pension Scheme of f.I42,000.

The Academy's associate staff members belong to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS),
which is a defined benefit pension scheme. The LGPS had an interim actuarial valuation as at 31

August 2019, and using the assumptions detailed in note 23 tothe financial statements, the deficit on
the scheme was calculated to be f,3,648,000; this has resulted in an actuarial loss on the scheme of
f709,000 being recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Overall, the Academy had a net reduction in funds of f,|,092,651 (2018 - a net increase of f.162,004)
and as at 3l August2019 the Academy had funds totalling f.5,565,367 (2018 - f,6,658,018). Of this
f,5,556,575 (2018 - f,6,578,615) is contained within the restricted funds, a breakdown of which can be
seen in note 16 to the financial statements.

Reserves Policy and Financial Position
The Academy aims to have funds on reserve that enable it to meet its on-going operational costs for a
period of 3 months. The Governors intend to review the reserve levels of the Academy annually to
ensure that this policy remains appropriate and to ensure that this provides sufficient working capital
to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with
unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance.

As at 31 August 2019 the Academy held total fund balances of f,5,565 ,367 . Of this the free reserves,
which just incorporates the unrestricted funds, amounted to f.8,792 (2018 - f79,403). Free reserves,
plus the carried forward funds in relation to the General Annual Grant and the Start Up Grant, but
excluding other restricted funds, amounted to f.8,792 (20 1 8 - 179,403). The Governors use this total to
determine whether operational reserves meet the required level, and this year have determined that this
level of operational reserves does not meet the required level. The Academy is focusing on increasing
lettings income over the coming financial year to improve this situation and the Governors will
consider this and other strategies over the coming months to increase the level of these reserves.

The LGPS pension reserve deficit of f3,648,000 causes the Restricted General Funds to appear
negative in value at 3l August 2019. The value of this reserve is calculated by an interim actuarial
valuation of the LGPS as at 31 August 2019. As explained in note 23, if this deficit ever became
payable the liabilities on the LGPS would be met by the Department of Education and not by the
Academy. Excluding the pension reserve the value of restricted general funds is f9,000 (2018 -
f.4,950).

The funds contained in the restricted fixed asset fund are not available for the general purposes ofthe
Academy as at 31 August 2019.
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F INAi\CIAL REVIE\ry @o nti nu e d)

Investment Policy
The Academy operates an investment policy that seeks to maximise returns, minimise risk and

maintain flexibility and access to funds.

Risk Management including Principal Risks and Uncertainties
A risk management committee has been established as part of the Academy's internal control
arrangements. They conduct an on-going review of the major risks to which the Academy has been

exposed, ensure that appropriate steps have been taken as necessary to mitigate these risks and provide
regular updates of the Academy's risk register for consideration by the Leadership Team.

The principal risk facing the Academy is that future income streams may not be sufhcient to cover
forecast future expenditure plans. Student numbers are the key driver of the Academy's income, and

the demographic trends set out in local population estimates showed that secondary school student
numbers within Bournemouth decreased until 2014115, before they started to climb significantly
following the large numbers of children presently within local primary education.

The Academy continues to report a steady increase in pupil admissions which is expected to continue
until Years 7 to ll reach full capacity (expected academic year 2020121). Entries into the Academy's
6th Form have approaching capacity in recent years, leading to expectations that the 6th Form will be

full in September 2020.

The risk register identifies a number of other significant financial risks and puts in place effective
means, including appropriate insurance cover, to mitigate these risks and safeguard the Academy's
interests. The Academy also has in place systems of internal financial control which are regularly
reviewed and updated.

X'undraising
The Academy does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Governors.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
The Academy will continue to carry out on-going reviews of structure and procedures across the

Academy with revisions taken as and when required.

The building programme undergone by the Academy over 2 years was completed in December 2013.
This is allowing the Academy to gradually increase capacity from 650 students to 1,050 (this includes
a dedicated 6tr'form centre for up to i50 post 16 learners). Curently the Academy has approximately
990 learners on roll and it is expected that full capacity will be reached by September 2020.

The Governors are reviewing the going concern status of the Academy in light of an expected decline
in cash balances over the year. The merger of the Academy's Local Authority with neighbouring
councils (forming Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council) from April 2019, has resulted in
funding per student declining from the anticipated value for the 2019120 academic year as the
councils' streamline schools funding across the merged boroughs. This, and the loss of anticipated
pupil number adjustment funding, means that the Academy is having to carefully manage its finances
over the next few years. The Academy will work on recommendations provided by a Schools
Resource Management Advisor review to make the necessary savings to ensure its continuation as a
going concern.
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PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS (contìnuect)

The Academy is investigating the development of a resource base for 10 high needs students from
September 2020 in order to meet local need. The plans for this base are currently in the application
stage, but is hoped that these will be approved and that the resource base will be built during summer
2A20.The Local Authority is providing funding to build the resource base and additional funding the
Academy will receive for the students placed here will cover the building's running costs. The
resource base will provide specialist provision to the eligible students, while allowing them access to
some mainstream education.

The Academy continues to focus on the 6ù form, which entered its seventh year of existence in
September 2019.ln order to maximise student recruifment and retention the Academy is investigating
the possibility of widening our 6e form curiculum offer, which is expected to appeal to the local
community. The Academy also wishes to expand the 6tl' form over the next few years, both in number
and physical size. Plans will be discussed over the coming years and methods of funding arranged.

From September 2019 the Academy has altered the structure of its House system. Eight houses have

been reduced to six, which contain students form Year 7 to 10. Year 1 I have been separated out of the
House system, having their own pastoral lead, and are now within academic tutor groups to focus on
subject intervention with the aim of improving results.

AUDITOR

Insofar as the Governors are aware:
o There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware,
e The Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of

any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Crowe U.K. LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as statutory auditor and a

resolution proposing its re-appointment will be subrnitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The report of the Governors, incorporating a Strategic Repoft, was approved by the Governing Body,
as the company directors, on to \1> \t\ and signed on their behalf by:

?--,r^^/ [,-¿¡f
RICHARD KNOTT
Chair of Governors
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility to ensure that The Bourne Academy
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Governing Body has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting
Officer, and the Finance and Pay Committee, for ensuring financial controls conform with the
requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Bourne
Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the
Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report
and in the Statements of Governors' Responsibilities. The Governing Body has formally met 4 times
during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Governors was as follows;

Mark Avoth
Joanna Binstead
Henry Bishop
Tim Brown
Daniel,Butt
Pauline Calvert
Sue Churchill
Caroline Foster
Oliver Hunter
Nicola Jinks
Richard Knott (Chair)
Heidi Leavesley
Lawrence Lewis
David Mastrocola
David Neill
Jacqueline Page
Ben Vessey

Meetings attended Out of a possible
44
22
aaJJ
44
34
44
34
34
34
44
44
24
ll
44
44
34
34

The Governing Body continue to monitor their breadth of skills and how they support the Academy.
The formal link governance structure, developed in 2018, has continued. This links individual
Governors to areas of the Academy. The aim of this is to increase the level of involvement governors
have within the Academy, ensuring that they have a deeper understanding of different areas. Link
Governors will assist their Academy area using their knowledge and experience and feed back to the
Governing Body any issues or areas of best practice they have observed.

During the year two new Governors were appointed. The first, Henry Bishop, as a sponsor Governor
and the second, Lawrence Lewis, as Parent Governor. Mr Lewis was unable to continue in his position
and resigned during July. Ms Lisa Welch was elected to Parent Governor in October 2019.
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GOVERNANCE (co ntínued)

During the year, the Governing Body has continued to review progress against the key performance
indicators detailed in the Academy's development plan. They challenge the executive group on the
results obtained, seeking explanations and confirming validity of the information presented. Although
the main challenge for the Academy continues to be managing the finances effectively in line with the
funding provided by the Department of Education, the Governing Body have also worked to ensure
that recommendations provided in the February Ofsted inspection are being followed up and acted
upon.

A skills audit of the Governing Body is taking place during October 2019.

The Finance and Pay Committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body. Its purpose is to
monitor the Academy's finances over the year, which includes; levels of funding (indicative and
actual), budgets and the medium term prospects, monitor and review the financial procedures within
the Academy and receive the auditor's reports and recommendations. The Finance and Pay Committee
is required to report back to the full Governing Body and make recommendations as required for the
full Governing Body approval. Meetings of the Finance and Pay Committee are generally held 3-4
weeks prior to a full Governors' Meeting.

Affendance at the meetings during the year was as follows:
Governor Meetings attended
Tim Brown (chairfrom October 2019) 3

Pauline Calvert (chair during the year) 3

Richard Knott 3

Mark Avoth 3

Out of a possible

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers
to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy's use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reports to the Governing Body where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The focus of the Academy is
always to raise educational standards and improve the achievements of our students, and with this in
mind, the Accounting Officer has focused resources in a way to maximise the students' achievements
while being mindful to deliver good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer for
the Academy has delivered improved value for money during the year by:
o When an employee has left the Academy, their job role has been reviewed to see if working

smarter could lead to the combination of roles. This has led to the appointment of one employee
at a lower salary than the employee who left and not requiring to replacement one other
employee. Both of these role combinations have been made within the Associate staffing team.

o Retender of the photocopier and printing contract which has led to significant savings in both the
copier rental costs and the actual cost of copies printed. This lead a reduction in these costs of
f32,164 when compared to 2017118.

¡ The Academy has been accepted onto the National Schools Breakfast programme, in partnership
with Magic Breakfast. This provides the Academy with free breakfast foods to supply to students
and saves the cost of the purchases that the Academy was making to fund free breakfasts itself.

J

J

J

J
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THE PURPOSE OF'THE SYSTEM OF'INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going
process designed to identif, and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in The Bourne Academy from 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Governing Body has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed, together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Governing Body is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifl,ing, evaluating and
managing the Academy's significant risks that has been in place for the period from 1 September 2018
to 3l August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the Governing Body.

THE RISK AIID CONTROL FRAMEWORI(

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties (where possible) and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Governing Body;

o regular review by the Finance and Pay Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

r setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
. clearly defined purchasing guidelines;
¡ delegation of authority and segregation of duties (where possible);
o identification and management of risks.

The Governing Body has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and re-appointed
Moore Stephens as intemal auditor during the year to 3 I August 2019.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of
checks on the Academy's financial systems. This year Moore Stephens have performed two reviews of
the financial processes in line with the Academy's Finance Manual and the Academy Handbook 2018
and delivered their work schedule as planned. In the checks carried out in the current period included:

¡ testing purchasing and banking procedures
¡ testing of lettings bookings and invoicing procedures
. compliance with the requirements of the Academy's Financial Handbook 2018.

The internal auditor reports to the Governing Body, through the Finance and Pay Committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Governing Body's financial
responsibilities.
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REVIE\ry OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibilþ for reviewing the effectiveness of the system

of intemal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

o the work of the intemal auditor;
o the work of the external auditor;
o the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

o the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the

development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting OfÍicer has been advised of the implications of the result of the review of the system

of internal control by the Finance and Pay Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure

continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body on \c, \tz-\ra and signed on its

behalfby:

?^*^¡ Yr*r(
RICHARD KNOTT
Chair of Governors

MARK AVOTH
Accounting Officer
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As Accounting Officer of The Bourne Academy, I have considered my responsibility to notifu the

Academy's Governing Body and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material

inegularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding received by the

Academy, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies

Financial Handbook 201 8.

I confirm that I, and the Academy's Goveming Body, are able to identifu any material irregular or

improper use of funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the Academy's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been

discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Governing Body and ESFA.

MARI( AVOTH
Accounting Officer

I)ate: \ ù S¿ ce-u^vsas 2g r.\
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The Governors (who act as trustees for charitable activities of The Bourne Academy and are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the

Governors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial staternents, the Governors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2018 to 2019;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

prepâre the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable compâny will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and

explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements

cornply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of
good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the

ESFA/DÍE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdorn
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body on 1s \,.2-\t\ and signed on its
behalf by:

?-...t/rv'^.l lh*^{
RICHARD KNOTT
Chair of Governors

a

a

a

a

a
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Boume Academy (the 'Academy Trust') for the year
ended 3l August 2019 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and

expenditure account, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a

summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland', the Charities SORP 2015 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:
o give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2019 and

of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure
for the year then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

r have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the

Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the
Education & Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you where:

¡ the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

¡ the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual report (which includes the Reference and Administrative Details,
the Report of the Directors and Strategic Report and the Governance Statement), other than the
financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repoft, we do
not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identifu such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are

required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

o the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
o certain disclosures of Trustees'remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the
directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such

internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy
Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an
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audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our Auditor's report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3

of Part 16 of the Companies Act2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Academy Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Academy Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Tara Westcott, Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalfof
Crowe U.K. LLP
Statutory Auditor
Canick House,
Lypiatt Road,
Cheltenham
GLso 2QJ

Date tl Decenl ç/ -zc\n
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated The Bourne Academy and further to the
requirements of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019,we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance

about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Bourne Academy during the
year I September 2018 to 3 1 August 2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Bourne Academy and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Bourne Academy and

the ESFA those maffers we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Bourne
Academy and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Bourne Academy accounting officer and the reporting
accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Bourne Academy's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 24 February 2010 and the Academies
Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and

income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's

ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement

letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all
material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year I September 2018 to 31

August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019
issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement
letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a

reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance

engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and

propriety of the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes a review of the design and implementation of
the charitable company's internal controls and review processes on regularity, supported by detailed
tests on samples of costs incurred by the charitable company and specific transactions identified from
our review.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY LIMITEI)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE BOURNE ACADEMY LIMITED AND THE

EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 3l
August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

CÁÒ,@MLL?
Crowe U.K. LLP
Statutory Auditor
Carrick House,
Lypiatt Road,
Cheltenham
GLso 2QJ

Date: lq lece¡r¡tç/ 2I)tl
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Incorporating the Income and Expenditure Account

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

INCOME FROM:
Donations and capital grants

Charitable activities:
Funding for the Academy's
educational operations

Other trading activities
Investments
Income from educational trips
Other income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:
Academy's educational operations

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

110,948 5,865,226 67,345 6,043,519 5,'.726,480

Note

9

3

4

5
6

7

Un-
restricted

Funds
f

107,856
1,267

1,560

94,058

5,917

10,973
(81,584)

Restricted
General

Funds
f.

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds
Ê

Total
2019

î.

5,744,639
I 18,653

1,267
130,000

2,060

Total
2018

f

5,445,557
10r,358

580
98,767

8,091

265 46,635

5,677,294
10,797

67,345

130,000

5,619

236,816

(219,534)
81,584

(tor,0o0)

(846,950) (175,090)

46,900 72,127

s00

99,677

6,327,493

77,901

6,172,5756,084,760

8 99,975 6,084,760 242,435 6,427,170 6,250,476

NET TNCOME / (EXPENDTTURE)
Transfers between funds

NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE) FOR THE
YEAR

OTHER RECOGNISED GAINS/ LOSSES
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes 23

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

(17s,090) (383,6s1) (s23,996)

(70,611) (137,9s0) (175,090) (383,651) (523,996)

16

(rjlooo)

(1,092,651)

686,000

162,004(70,611)

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Funds brought forward at I September 2018 79,403 (2,792,050\ 9,370,665 6,658,018 6,496,014

FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD AT 31
August 2019 16 8,792 (3,639,000) 9,195,575 5,565,367 6,658,018

All of the Academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods

The notes on pâges 30 to 51 form part ofthese financial statements



FD(ED ASSETS
Tangible assets

CT'RRENT ASSETS
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

LIABILITIES
Creditors: Amounts falling due within
one y€ar

NET CTIRRENT ASSETS

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme
liability

TOTAL NET ASSETS

FUNDS OF TIIE ACADEMY
Restricted funds

Pension deficit reserve
Fixed asset fund
Restricted general funds

TOTALRESTRICTED FUNDS

Unrestricted general funds

TOTAL FI'NDS

TTIE BOURNE ACADEMY

BALA}{CE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2OI9

2019
Note s

13 9,1871698

l4
2,938

318,609
83,481

405,028

rs (379,359)

25,669

9,213,367

9,213,367

23 (3,648,000)

5,5650367

l6
(3,648,000)

9,195,575
9,000

çf
2018

r.

I

1,369
292,815
314,182

608,366

(495,370)

(2,797,000)
9,370,665

4,954

28

9342,422

112,996

9,455,018

9,455,018

(2,797,000)

6,658,018

6,578,615

79,403l6

5,556,575

8,792

5,565,367 6,658,018

The financial statements on pages 27 to 51 were approved and authorised fbr issue by the Governors
on \ s l¿ce-*roc¡ 2019 and signed on their behalf by:

L*^rt
RICHARI)
Chair of Governors
Company Registration number: 07 I 48 I 5 I

The notes on pages 30 to 5l form part ofthese financial statements



Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activites

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at I September 2018

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2019

THE BOURNE ACADEMY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR EI\DED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

Note

2l

2l

2019
f

Qtt,202)

(r9,499)

(230,701)

29

2018
f.

(34,888)

(6,758)

(41,646)

355,828

314,182

314,182

)) 83,481

The notes on pâges 30 to 5l form part ofthese financial statements



30

THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

The Bourne Academy is registered as a company limited by guarantee at Companies House (No.
07148158) and is an exempt Charity. The address of the registered office is Hadow Road,
Bournemouth, BHl0 5HS.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Academy, which is apublic benefit entity underFRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing
their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act2006.

The Bourne Academy meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability
of the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect
of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements
and have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's
ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

o Grants - grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis.
The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the year is
shown in the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of
meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the
income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received,
the income is accrued.

The General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from
income and recognised as a liability.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital grants are recognised when there is an entitlement and are not deferred over the life of
the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected as a
balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

I)onations - donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-
related conditions) where receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income - other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is
receivable and to the extent the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third pafi, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified
by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one

activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between
those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allooated on

the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

o Expenditure on Raising Funds - this includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to
raise funds for its charitable purpose and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and
non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities - these are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations,
including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to
charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing f 1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net
of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
Government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and

depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions
attached to the funding requiring the continued use ofthe asset, the related grants are credited to
a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the
Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset

fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired
with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

a

o

a
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOTINTING POLICIES (continued)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the

carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:

- 50 years straight line
- 10 years straight line
- between 3 and 5 years straight line
- between 4 and 6 years straight line
- 5 years straight line

Stock

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost of net realisable value.

Debtors

Trade debtors and all other debtors (excluding prepayments) are recognised at their settlement
amount after any discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepared net of any
discounts.

Cash at bank and in hand

This includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months

or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Financial Instruments

The Academy only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualifo as basic financial
instrument. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and

subsequently measured at their settlement value.

Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph I Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes. Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or
capital gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such

income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Long leasehold buildings
Leasehold improvements
Computer equipment
Fixtures, fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2OI9

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme

(TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are deflrned benefit schemes.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is

a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are

determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a

prospective unit credit method. As stated in Note 23, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer
scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. The TPS is therefore treated as a

defined contributions scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the

period to which they relate.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and

liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and

discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and cuffency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least

triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating deficit
are the current service costs and the costs of the scheme introductions, benefit changes,

settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on

the net defined benefit liability is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and

comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme

assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period
by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income

on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised
gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when where is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a
past event, if it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and

the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount

that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as

advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES @ontinued)

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied for specific capital purposes

imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by
the funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, and are based on historical experience and

other factors, including expectations offuture events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below;

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on

a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The

assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate.

Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying
amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from
the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016has been used by the actuary in
valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived

from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

The annual depreciation charges for the tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated
useful economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual
values are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates and the physical condition of the

assets. See note 13 for the carrying amount of the tangible assets and Note 1 for the useful lives
for each class ofasset.

Agency arrangements

The Academy acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments

received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the
Statement of Financial Activities as the Academy does not have control over the charitable
application of the funds. The Academy can use up to 5Yo of the allocation towards its own
administration costs and this is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds
received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 25.
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THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2. GENERALANNUALGRANT(GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the Academy was subject to limits at 3l
August 2019 on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An
amount equal to l2%o of GAG could be carried forward, of which up to 2%o could be used for
general recurrent purposes, with any balance being available for premises/capital purposes.

The Academy has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2019

3. DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

4. F'UNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted
Funds

s

Capitalgrants
Capitalgifts in kind
Other donations

DfE / ESFA revenue grant
General AnnualGrant - note2
Start-up grants
Disadvantaged student funds
Devolved formula capital grant
Other DfE / ESFA grants

Other Government grants
Local authority - SENCO
Local authority - other grants
Other grants and payments

Other income from educational
operations

Unrestricted Restricted Totat 2019 Total2018
Funds Funds

: : : 30,00å
- 20,000

265 46,635 46,900 22,127

265 46,635 46,900 72,727

Restricted Total2019 Total2018
FundsÍ, î, r.

5,064,988 500640988

295,376
67,345
92,578

295,376
67,345
92,578

4,803,624
24,290

318,575
19,491
47,708

5,520,287 5,5200287 5,213,688

87,568
41,297

87,568
41,297

106,215
57,257
11,320

128,865 128,865 174,792

95,487 95,487 57,077

5,744,639 5,744,639 5,445,557
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Total 2019 Total 2018

5. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Hire of facilities
Uniform sales
Staff services & tuition
Leavers Hoodie / Summer ball sales

Funds raised by departments
Sales ofgood & services

6. INVESTMENT INCOME

Short term deposits

7. OTHER INCOME

Insurance claim
Training reimbursed
Other

8. EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on raising funds
Academy' s educational operations:

Direct costs
Allocated Support costs

24,820
10062

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds

ff
1,267

Unrestricted
Funds

f

1,560

1,560

107,856 10,797 118,653 101,358

Total2019 Total2018

Unrestricted
Funds

f
62,327

675
18,972

Staff
Costs

f
78,385

Restricted
Funds

:

2,215
8,582

Non Pay Expenditure
Premises Other

sf
16o215 5,077

Ê

1,267

f
s80

Restricted Totat 2019 Total20l8

f.
4,423
2,230
1,438

2,060 8,091

Funds

: :

2,06050;

500

s,

620327

675
18,972
2,215

330402
1,062

Total
2019

f
990677

4,9510533
1,3751960

f.
57,392

140

13,850
2,758

25,880
1,338

Total
2018

Ð

77,901

4,066,606
883,409

228,872
269,038

65ó,055
223,513

4,616,059
1,556,517

50028,400 514,125 884,645 6,4270170 6,250,476
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

- Audit
- Other services

2019
g

46,076
242,435

11,250
4,029

2019
f

419511533

1,375,960

Ê

883,409
7,944

261,094
185,101
38,412

37

2018
f

65,418
253,435

10,975
5,025

2018
î.

4,616,058
1,556,517

f
901,036

12,864
268,198
349,066

25,353

8. EXPENDITUNE(continued)

Net income(expenditure) for the year includes:

9. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES _ ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation
Fees payable to auditor for:

Direct costs
Support costs

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Premises costs
Other support costs
Governance costs

6,327,493 6,772,575

Total2019 Total2018Educational
Operations

*,

883,409
7,944

261,094
185,101
38,412

Total support costs 1,375,960 1,375,960 1,556,517

Governance costs total f38,413 (2018 - {25,353) and include; legal and professional fees of
f21,758 (2018 - f7,399), auditors remuneration of f 15,279 (2018 - f 16,000), support costs of
î,1,376 (2018 - f,l,954) and Governors'training and reimbursed expenses of nil (2018 - nil).
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2019
g

308060506

369,481
573,499

4,112

4,753,598
68,801

38

2018
f,

3,462,238
336,596
539,011

2,375

4,340,220
127,328

2018
No.

2018
No.

1

1

I

I

10. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs during the period were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes

Apprenticeship levy

Supply staff costs

4,8220399 4,467,548

There are no non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments included within staff costs (2018

- nil).

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

l4t 135

Higher paid staff
The number of higher paid employees whose employee benefits (excluding pension costs)

exceeded f,60,000 was:

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:
2019

No.

f,60,001 - f70,000
f,70,001 - Ê80,000
f,80,001 - f90,000
f,90,001 - 9100,000
f,100,001 -f110,000

89
46

6

87
44

4

2019
No.

1

I
I

1

Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Governors and the Executive
Group as listed on page l. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension

contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by paid key management
personnel (the Executive Group and Staff Governor) for their services to the Academy was

f.537,243 (2018 - r.450,287).
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YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS; GOVERNORS REMUNERATION & EXPENSES

One or more Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an

employment with the Academy. The Principal and other staff Governors only receive

remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Principal and staff
members under their contracts of employment. The value of Governors' remuneration and other
benefits was as follows:

M Avoth (Principal and Governor)
Remuneration fl05,001 - f,l 10,000 (2018: f100,001 - fl05,000)
Employer's pension contribution f 15,000 - f20,000 (2018;f 15,000 - t20,000)

D Mastrocola (Staff Governor)
Remuneration f40,001 - f45,000 (2018; f40,001- f45,000)
Employer's pension contribution f,5,000 - f10,000 (2018:f,5,000 - f 10,000)

During the year no travel and subsistence expenses were reimbursed to Governors, in their role
as Governor (2018 - nil was reimbursed).

12. GOVERNORS' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect
Governors and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, effors or omissions occurring
whilst on Academy business. The insurance provides cover up to f,5,000,000 on any one claim
and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2019 is no longer separately identifiable within the

total insurance cost.
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13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Long
Leasehold

Lando
Buildings &

Improvements
g

10,31 1,104
26,133

1,042,405
2t6,870

Fixtures,
Fittings &

Equipment

Computer
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Total

ff,f.f
Cost
At 1 September 2018
Additions
Disposals

At 3l August20l9

Depreciation
At I September20lS
Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal

l82,tzl
l7,167

(4,981)

432,077
44,811

34,083 10,959,385
- 88,111

- (4,981)

70,337,237 194,307 476,888 34,083 11,042,515

143,428
13,801

(4,981)

398,616
10,595

1,617,363
242,435
(4,981)

32,914
1,169

2019
f,

12,246
43,633
4,000

258,730

At 3l August 2019

Net book value

At 31 August 2019

At 3l August 2018

1,259,275 152,248 409,211 34,083 1,854,817

91077,962 42,059 67,677 9,187,698

9,269,699 38,693 33,461 7,169 9,342,022

The Academy occupied the site of its predecessor school, which is owned by the Local
Authority, under a short term Tenancy at Will agreement until 14 January 2016. On 15 January
2016 a new lease agreement was entered into with the Local Authority for a period of 125 years
(note l9). The value of the long leasehold land was brought into the financial statements in 2013
at the value of the building programme, which was undertaken between 2011 and 2013.
Depreciation commenced on the Long Leasehold Buildings once the Academy had full use of the
premises.

14. DBBTORS

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Other debtors
Amounts owed from connected party
Prepayments and accrued income

201 8
f,

3,425
46,745

1,700
4,759

236,186

319,609 292,875
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4t

2019
f,

2350100
91,659

60013

46,587

379,359 495,370

15. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Taxation, social security and pension liabilities
ESFA creditor: abatement of GAG
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferred fncome

Defened income at 1 September 2018
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2019

2018
r,

205,771
83,872

I 11,303
2,077

92,407

2019
f

65,976
14,484

(65,976)

2018
r.

48,710
62,389

(45,123)

14,484 65,976

The value of deferred income included above relates to funds received in advance for educational
trips occurring from 1 September 2019.
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Income
f,

130,000

Expenditure
Ê

(r57,689)
(142,000)

Expenditure

Gainsn
Losses &

Transfers
*.

Gains,
Losses &

Transfers
f.

42

Balance at
31 August

2019
f

Balance at
31 August

2019
f,

16. F'UNDS

Funds for the year ended 31 August 2019

Balance at I
September

2018
f

Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant
Start-up grant
Other ESFA/DfE grants
Disadvantaged students
LA- SENDCO
LA - other grants
SUN Careers grant
Other Government grants
Other grants, sales &
donations
Educational trips
Pension reserve

40950

Balance at I
September

2018
f

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
Minibus
ESFA - General Annual Grant
ESFA - capital grant
Cycle helmet lockers
MUGA pitch
Science Lab refurbishment
LA-Land&Buildings
LA - capital grant
STEM Learning Suite
Other small assets

Total Restricted Funds

Total Unrestricted Funds

5,064,988 (5,146,572'.) 81,584

92,578
295,376

87,5ó8
41,297
70,051
t7,767
65,601

(92,578)
(267,687)

(87,568)
(41,297)
(75,001)
(17,767)
(56,601)

(27,689)

9,000

27,689
(709,000) (3,643,000;(2,797,000)

(2,792,050\ 5,865,226 (6,084,760) (627,416) (3,639,000)

Income
f, c

1,169
200244
73,023

1,296
70,037
300000

90097,267
560882
16,667
4,080

(1,169)
(4,754)

(13,035)
(1,073)
(8,928)
(5,091)

(202,161)
(1,27t)
(4,000)

(es3)

15,490
127,333

223
61,109
24,909

8,895,106
55,661
12,667
3,127

67,345

9,370,665 67,345 (242,435) 9,195,575

60579,615 5,932,571 (6,327,195) (627,416) 5,556,575

79,403 110,948 (99,975) (81,584) 8,792

Total Funds 6,658,018 6,043,519 (6,427,t7O) (709,000) 5,5650367
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X'unds for the year ended 31 August 2018

Income

4,803,624
24,290
47,708

318,575
106,215

57,257
57,077
11,320
34,494

Expenditure
f

(4,797,881)
(24,290)
(47,708)

(292,579)
(106,215)

(57,257)
(51,277)
(11,320)
(44,765)

(126,467)
(365,000)

Gains,
Losses &

Transfers
f

(5,743)

(25,996)

(8s0)

(4,729)

27,700
686,000
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Balance at
31 August

2018
f

4,950

(2,797,000\

16. FUNDS @ontinued)

Balance at I
September

2017
r,

Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant
Start-up grant
Other ESFA/DfE grants
Disadvantaged students
LA - SENDCO
LA - other grants
SUN Careers grant
Other Government grants
Other grants, sales &
donations
Educational trips
Pension reserve

Balance at 1

September
20r7

$
Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
Minibus 3,989
ESFA - General Annual Grant 25,894
ESFA - capital grant 730872

Cycle helmet lockers 2,533
MUGA pitch 78,965
Science Lab refurbishment
LA - Land & Buildings 9,299,428
LA - capital grant 58,211
STEM Learning Suite
Other small assets 1,051

Total Restricted Funds

Total Unrestricted Funds

f

15,000

98,767
(3,118,000)

(3,103,000) 5,559,327 (5,924,759) 676,382 Q,792,050)

Income
f,

19,491

30,000

Expenditure
f

(2,820)
(t2,44t)
(20,340)
(1,237)
(8,928)

(202,161)
(1,329)
(3,333)

(846)

Gains,
Losses &

Transfers
f

6,791

Balance at
31 August

2018
Ê

lo169
20,244
73,023

1,296
70,037
30,000

9,097,267
56,882
16,667
4,080

20,000
3,875

9,543,943 69,491 (253,435) 10,666 9,370,665

6,440,943 5,ó280818 (6,178,194) ó87,048 6,5780615

55,071 97,662 (72,282) (1,048) 79,403

Total Funds 6,496,014 5,726,480 (6,250,476) 686,000 6,658,018
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16. FIJNDS (contìnued)

General Annual Grant - this fund represents the Government funding, through the ESFA, for
the provision of education by the Academy. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of
State, the Academy was subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 3l
August 2019. Note 2 discloses whether the limit was exceeded.

Start-up grant - this represents Government funding, through the ESFA, to assist in the opening

and set up of the Academy in its first years of operation.

Other ESF"A/DfE grants - this fund represents Government funding received, through the

ESFA, for specific purposes claimed for by the Academy. All funds received have been spent in

accordance with their purposes.

Disadvantaged students - this fund represents Government funding received through the ESFA

to provide additional support to students who have qualified for Free School Meals at any point
in the last 6 years in order to raise their attainment. Expenditure this year has been spent in a
variety of areas including; educational materials, one-to-one tuition, literacy support, breakfast

club, mentoring and providing financial assistance for these students to attend educational trips
(the transfer out ofthe fund).

LA - SENDCO fund - this represents top-up funding received from the Local Authority to
assist in providing teaching assistants for students with special educational needs and are covered

by Educational Health Care Plans.

LA - other grants - this represents Looked After Children and pupil placement funding, for
students placed with the Academy by the Local Authority. Funds have been spent providing
resources for these students.

SUN careers grant - this represents funds received from the Southern Universities Network in
order to support a project to ensure that all Year 9 - 13 learners have access to quality, impartial

one-to-one careers guidance and to enhance careers provision activities. Funds have been spent

according to the grant application.

Other Government grants - this represents funding from Government agencies, other than the

ESFA, Department of Education and the Local Authority. Funds received this year relate to
grants from the Teach I't agency and the Schools Direct Scheme to support the Academy in the

costs of employing new graduates as teachers through these schemes'

Other grantso sales and donations - this represents funds received to assist with a range of
other activities. This year funding has been received from: the Duke of Edinburgh Diamond

scheme to support the Academy's Duke of Edinburgh activities; Public Health Dorset to support

health and well-being through outdoor education at the Academy, the Valentine Trust and North
Bournemouth Locality to support the employment of a first aider, The Boume Foundation to

support Young Carers within the Academy and various smaller grants to support the Year 7

summer school and residential trip. Funds have been spent in accordance with their purpose.

Funds caried forward relate to the first aider and Year 7 residential grants which have not yet

been spent.
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16. FUNDS þontinued)

Educational trips - this fund represents monies raised, through parents, students and outside

sources, to cover the cost ofrunning various day and residential trips for the students. Transfers
into the fund relate to Disadvantaged Student funding used to support these students to go on

educational trips.

Pension reserve - this represents the deficit on the Local Govemment Pension Scheme. The

costs/movements relating to the fund for the year have been taken from the ESFA General
Annual Grant. This has been transferred into the pension reserve fund.

Restricted fïxed asset fund - this represents funds received from organisations for capital
purposes. Funds received during the year related to general capital funding and donations for
acquiring assets. The costs within this fund are the depreciation costs of the assets included
within the fund. Transfers into this fund relate to the value of {ixed assets acquired using funding
from other funds.

I7. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FTII\DS

Fund balances at 3l August 2019 are represented by:

Unrestricted
Funds

f,
Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

8,792

Fund balances at 3 I August 20 I I are represented by

Unrestricted
Funds

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

8,792 (3,639,000) 9,195,575 5,565,367

Restricted

3880359
(379,359)

(3,648,000)

Restricted
Fixed Assets

Fund
f,

9,1870698
7,877

Total2019
f,

9,187,698
405,028

(379,359)
(3,648,000)

Total 2018
f

90342,022
608,366

(495,370)
(2,797,000)

Funds

:

Restricted

500,320
(495,370)

(2,797,000)

Restricted
Fixed Assets

Fund
f

91342,022
28,643

Funds

:
79,403

:

79,403 (2,792,050) 9,370,665 60658,018
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18. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Academy has entered into a lease from 15 January 2016 to occupy the premises of the

predecessor school, which are owned by Bournemouth Borough Council. The lease is for
peppercorn rent and for a length of 125 years.

At 31 August 2019 the total of the Academy's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

140,029 126,648

19. MEMBERS' LIABILITIES

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in
the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to
be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding f10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There were no capital commitments in either year.

2I. NOTES TO THE CASH FLO\il STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

20t9
f,

50,633
89,396

201 8

f.
44,599
82,049

Net (expenditure) (as per the Statement of Financial Activities)
Depreciation
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Capital grants from ESFA and other sources
Interest receivable
(Increase) in Stock
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
(Decrease/Increase in creditors

Net cash provided by / (used in) in operating activities

2019
s

(383,651)
242,435
206,000
(64,000)
(67,345)
(r,267)
(1,569)

(25,794)
(116,09

(2t1,202)

201 8
î.

(523,996)
253,435
278,000

87,000
(69,491)

(s80)
(1,369)

(36,325)
(21,562)

(34,888)
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1,267
(88,111)
67,345
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s80
(76,829)
19,491
50,000

21. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS @ontinued)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from ESFA
Capital funding received from other sources

Net cash outflow from investing activities (19,499) (6,758)

22. ANALYSTS OF CÄSH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

2019 201 8

t
314,182Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

83,481

83,481 314,182

23. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension

Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Barnett Waddingham.
Both are multi-employer defined-benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the
LGPS 3l March 2016.

There were no outstanding contributions payable to the schemes at either the beginning or the
end ofthe financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-
time teachers in academies and, from I January 2007 automatic for teachers in part-time
employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these

contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and

other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

f
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23. PENSION COMMITMENTS @ontinued)

Valuation of the Teachers'Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review
of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)
Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to speci$ the level of
future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value
of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the
TPS was carried out as at 3l March 2072 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions
(Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the
Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent

consultation are:
¡ Employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08Yo

employer admini stration charge;
o Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future

benefits) for service to the effective date of f191,500 million, and notional assets

(estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the
valuation date) of f,176,600 million, giving a notional past service deficit of f,14,900
million;

o An employer cost cap of l0.9Yo of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations;
o The assumed real rate of return is 3.ÙYo in excess of prices and 2Yo in excess of earnings.

The rate of real earnings growth is assumed tobe2.75Yo. The assumed nominal rate of
return is 5.06%o.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of l6.4yo, which was payable from
September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April2016 data,
whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from I
September 2019.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to f376,542 (2018 - f340,644).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions

website.

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102, the TPS is a multi-employer
pension scheme. The Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a
defined contributions scheme. The Academy has set out above the information available on the

scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 3l August 2019 was f259,000
(2018 - f262,000), of which employer's contributions totalled f194,000 (2018 - f,195,000) and

employees'contributions totalled f65,000 (2018 - f67,000). The agreed contribution rates for
future years are 18.8% for employers and between 5.5Yo and 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request ofthe Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that,
in the event of Academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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23. PENSION COMMITMENTS þontinued)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in
mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumption (CPf
Commutation of pensions to lump sums

Retiring today:
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

Sensitivity Analysis

Discount rate +0.7%o

Discount rate -D.lVo
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPI rate +0.lYo
CPI rate -0.1%

The Academy's share of the assets were:

Equities
Gilts
Alternative assets

Propeffy
Cash
Other bonds
Infrastructure
Multi asset credit

Total market value of assets

At 3lAugust
2019

3.65Vo
2.15V"
1.90"/"
2.15"/"

50"/"

At 3lAugust
201 8

3.80%
2.30%
2.65%
2.30%

s0%

26.3
28.5

At 3lAugust
2018

f,'000
4,995
5,1 56
5,191
4,953
5,143
4,899

At 3lAugust
2019

22.9
24.8

24.6
26.6

At 3i August
2018

24.0
26.1

At 3lAugust
2019

f'000
6,088
6,429
6,477
6,042
6,411
6,105

Fair value at 31 Fair value at 31

August 2019 August 2018
f0000 f'000
1,331 1,273

342 278
152 133

272 225

68 21

186 154
137 95
120 103

The actual return on scheme assets was f 199,000 (2018 - î,47,000)

2,608 ) )))



¿

THE BOURNE ACADEMY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

23. PENSION COMMITMENTS þontinued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Fair value at
31 Aug 2019

f'000
(400)

66
(2)

(336)

Changes in the present value of defined benefÏt obligations were as follows:
2019

g'000

At I September 5'019
Current service cost 400

Interest cost 133

Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in (70)
Employee contributions 65

Actuarial (gain)/loss 709

At 31 August 6'256

Changes in the fair value of Academy's share of scheme assets:
2019

f'000
2,222

61
138

194
65

(70)
(2)

2,608

Current service cost (net of employee contributions)
Net interest cost
Administration expenses

Total operating charge

At 1 September
Interest income
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net

defined pension liability)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Estimated benefits paid
Administration expenses

At 31 August

Fair value at 31

Aug 2018
f,'000
(473)
(78)

2

(s4e)

50

5,019

2018
f,'000
1,946

54
(7)

195

67
(31)
(2)

1 1)J

2018
f,'000
5,064

473
132

(3 1)

67
(686)

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 3l August 2020 is f'I95,000
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Governors being drawn

from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations

in which the Academy has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are

conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook and with
the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. The following related
party transactions took place in the period ofaccount.

Included within other creditors is a balance of il,269 (2018 - in other debtors f,4,759) due from
the Bourne Foundation, a connected charity. During the year the Academy received repayment of
funds owed to it from the Bourne Foundation amounting to f,4,759 and collected and bank

contributions for the Bourne Foundation totalling f,|,269 (2018 - f24l). The Bourne Foundation

granted, and paid over, a total of f 10,508 to the Academy during the year; f6,380 related to
grants to assist with the Academy's work with Young Carers and f,4,128 related to grants to
assist with the purchase of a new homework software and equipment for the Food department.

This resulted with the Foundation having a net deficit for the year of f,1,494 (2018 - net surplus

of f.4,282) and a net asset position of f,2,793 at 31 Augustz0lg (t4,287 at 3l August 2018).

25. AGENCY ARRAGEMENTS

The Academy distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the year

ended 3l August 2019 the Academy received f)0,943 (2018 - f.15,146) and disbursed f9,702
(2018 - f.16,367) from the fund. An amount of f.7,522 (2018 - f281) is included in Other

Creditors relating to the undistributed funds that are repayable to the ESFA.

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On26 October 2018 the High Court ruled that equalisation for the effect of unequal Guaranteed

Minimum Pensions (GMPs) is required. The ruling confirmed that trustees have a duty "to
equalise benefits for men and women so as to alter the result which is at present produced in
relation to GMPs". According to HM Treasury, any impact of GMPs is unlikely to be material to
the pension valuation and therefore no allowance for GMP equalisation has been made in the

FRS102 LGPS pension liability for this year. Full GMP indexation will be applied to the LGPS

pension liability once changes to the LGPS have been formally announced.


